

prevent a violation of the provisions of—

- (1) The Atomic Energy Act;
- (2) Title II of the Energy

Reorganization Act of 1974; or

(3) A regulation or order pursuant to those Acts.

(b) The Commission may obtain a court order for the payment of a civil penalty imposed under section 234 of the Atomic Energy Act:

(1) For violations of:

(i) Sections 53, 57, 62, 63, 81, 82, 101, 103, 104, 107, or 109 of the Atomic Energy Act;

(ii) Section 206 of the Energy Reorganization Act;

(iii) Any rule, regulation, or order issued pursuant to the sections specified in paragraph (b)(1)(i) of this section;

(iv) Any term, condition, or limitation of any license issued under the sections specified in paragraph (b)(1)(i) of this section.

(2) For any violation for which a license may be revoked under section 186 of the Atomic Energy Act.

■ 31. In § 110.66, paragraph (b) is revised to read as follows:

§ 110.66 Enforcement hearing.

* * * * *

(b) A hearing pursuant to this subpart will be conducted under the procedures in subpart G of part 2 of this chapter.

■ 32. In § 110.67, paragraph (a) is revised to read as follows:

§ 110.67 Criminal penalties.

(a) Section 223 of the Atomic Energy Act provides for criminal sanctions for willful violation of, attempted violation of, or conspiracy to violate, any regulation issued under sections 161b., 161i., or 161o. of the Atomic Energy Act. For purposes of section 223, all the regulations in 10 CFR part 110 are issued under one or more of sections 161b., 161i., or 161o., except for the sections listed in paragraph (b) of this section.

* * * * *

■ 33. Section 110.70 is revised to read as follows:

§ 110.70 Public notice of receipt of an application.

(a) The Commission will notice the receipt of each license application, including applications for amendment or renewal, for an export or import for which a specific license is required by making a copy available at the NRC Web site, <http://www.nrc.gov>.

(b) The Commission will also publish in the **Federal Register** a notice of receipt of each license application, including applications for amendment or renewal, to export the following:

(1) A production or utilization facility.

(2) Five effective kilograms or more of plutonium, high-enriched uranium or uranium-233.

(3) 10,000 kilograms or more of heavy water. (Note: Does not apply to exports of heavy water to Canada.)

(4) Nuclear grade graphite for nuclear end use.

(5) Radioactive waste.

(c) The Commission will also publish in the **Federal Register** a notice of receipt of a license application, including applications for amendment or renewal, for an import of radioactive waste for which a specific license is required.

■ 34. Section 110.80 is revised to read as follows:

§ 110.80 Basis for hearings.

The procedures in this part will constitute the exclusive basis for hearings on export and import license applications.

■ 35. In § 110.81, paragraph (b) is revised to read as follows:

§ 110.81 Written comments.

* * * * *

(b) These comments should be submitted within 30 days after public notice of receipt of the application on the NRC Web site or in the **Federal Register** and addressed to the Secretary, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555-0001, Attention: Rulemakings and Adjudications Staff.

* * * * *

■ 36. In § 110.82, paragraph (c) is revised to read as follows:

§ 110.82 Hearing request or intervention petition.

* * * * *

(c) Hearing requests and intervention petitions will be considered timely only if filed not later than:

(1) 30 days after notice of receipt in the **Federal Register**, for those applications published in the **Federal Register**;

(2) 30 days after publication of notice on the NRC Web site at <http://www.nrc.gov>;

(3) 30 days after notice of receipt in the Public Document Room; or

(4) Such other time as may be provided by the Commission.

■ 37. In § 110.112, paragraph (b) is revised to read as follows:

§ 110.112 Reporter and transcript for an oral hearing.

* * * * *

(b) Except for any portions containing classified information, Restricted Data, Safeguards Information, proprietary

information, or other sensitive unclassified information, transcripts will be made available at the NRC Web site, <http://www.nrc.gov>, and/or at the NRC Public Document Room.

* * * * *

Appendix L—[Amended]

■ 38. Appendix L to 10 CFR Part 110 is amended by adding “Carbon 11 (C 11),” “Cesium 129 (Cs 129),” “Cobalt 57 (Co 57),” “Gallium 67 (Ga 67),” “Gold 195 (Au 195),” “Indium 111 (In 111),” “Iodine 123 (I 123),” “Iron 52 (Fe 52),” “Nitrogen 13 (N 13),” “Oxygen 15 (O 15),” “Potassium 43 (K 43),” “Rubidium 81 (Rb 81),” “Yttrium 87 (Y 87),” and “Yttrium 88 (Y 88)” in alphabetical order.

Dated at Rockville, Maryland, this 19th day of July, 2010.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

Annette Vietti-Cook,

Secretary of the Commission.

[FR Doc. 2010-18219 Filed 7-27-10; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7590-01-P

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

12 CFR Part 226

[Regulation Z; Docket No. R-1384]

Truth in Lending

June 29, 2010.

AGENCY: Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.

ACTION: Final rule, correction.

SUMMARY: This document corrects a typographical error in the amendatory instructions published in the **Federal Register** of June 29, 2010, regarding final rules amending Regulation Z, which implements the Truth in Lending Act, and the staff commentary to the regulation in order to implement provisions of the Credit Card Accountability Responsibility and Disclosure Act of 2009 that go into effect on August 22, 2010.

DATES: *Effective Date:* The rule is effective August 22, 2010.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Stephen Shin, Attorney, or Amy Henderson or Benjamin K. Olson, Senior Attorneys, Division of Consumer and Community Affairs, Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, at (202) 452-3667 or 452-2412; for users of Telecommunications Device for the Deaf (TDD) only, contact (202) 263-4869.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The Board published a final rule in the **Federal Register** on June 29, 2010, (75 FR 37526)

(FR Doc. 2010–14717) amending Regulation Z, which implements the Truth in Lending Act, and the staff commentary to the regulation in order to implement provisions of the Credit Card Accountability Responsibility and Disclosure Act of 2009 that go into effect on August 22, 2010. However, the citation to the authority for part 226 was inadvertently omitted from that document’s amendatory instructions. This document corrects that error.

■ In final rule, FR Doc. 2010–14717, published on June 29, 2010, (75 FR 37526) make the following corrections:

PART 226—TRUTH IN LENDING (REGULATION Z)

■ 1. On page 37568, in the second column, under the amendatory instructions, insert the authority citation shown below and renumber the remainder of the amendatory instructions as applicable.

“■ 1. The authority citation for part 226 continues to read as follows:

Authority: 12 U.S.C. 3806; 15 U.S.C. 1604, 1637(c)(5), and 1639(l); Pub. L. 111–24; §§ 2, 101(c), 102(b), 123 Stat. 1734.”

By order of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, July 22, 2010.

Jennifer J. Johnson,
Secretary of the Board.

[FR Doc. 2010–18410 Filed 7–27–10; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6210–01–P

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

18 CFR Part 11

[Docket No. RM10–27–000]

Update of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission’s Fees Schedule for Annual Charges for the Use of Government Lands

AGENCY: Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, DOE.

ACTION: Final rule.

SUMMARY: In accordance with the Commission’s regulations, the Commission by its designee, the Executive Director, is updating its schedule of fees for the use of government lands. The yearly update is based on the most recent schedule of fees for the use of linear rights-of-way prepared by the United States Forest Service. Since the next fiscal year will cover the period from October 1, 2009 through September 30, 2010 the fees in this rule will become effective October 1, 2010. The fees will apply to fiscal year 2010 annual charges for the use of government lands.

DATES: *Effective Date:* July 27, 2010.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Fannie Kingsberry, Division of Financial Services, Office of the Executive Director, Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, 888 First Street, NE., Washington, DC 20426, (202) 502–6108.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: *Document Availability:* In addition to publishing the full text of this document in the Federal Register, the Commission provides all interested persons an opportunity to view and/or print the contents of this document via the Internet through the Commission’s Home Page (<http://www.ferc.gov>) and in the Commission’s Public Reference Room during normal business hours

(8:30 a.m. to 5 p.m. Eastern time) at 888 First Street, NE., Room 2A, Washington, DC 20426.

From the Commission’s Home Page on the Internet, this information is available in the eLibrary. The full text of this document is available on eLibrary in PDF and MSWord format for viewing, printing, and/or downloading. To access this document in eLibrary, type the docket number excluding the last three digits of this document in the docket number field.

User assistance is available for eLibrary and the Commission’s Web site during normal business hours from FERC’s Online Support at (202) 502–6652 (toll free 1–866 208–3676) or e-mail at ferconlinesupport@ferc.gov, or the Public Reference Room at (202) 502–8371, TTY (202) 502–8659. E-mail the Public Reference Room at public.referenceroom@ferc.gov.

The Commission has concluded, with the concurrence of the Administrator of the Office of Information and Regulatory Affairs of OMB that this rule is not a “major rule” as defined in section 251 of the Small Business Regulatory Enforcement Fairness Act of 1996, 5 U.S.C 804(2).

List of Subjects in 18 CFR Part 11

Electric power, Reporting and recordkeeping requirements.

Thomas R. Herlihy,
Executive Director, Office of the Executive Director.

■ Accordingly, the Commission amends part 11 of Chapter I, Title 18 of the Code of Federal Regulations, as follows:

PART 11—[AMENDED]

■ 1. The authority citation for part 11 continues to read as follows:

Authority: 16 U.S.C. 791a–825r; 42 U.S.C. 7101–7352.

■ 2. In part 11, Appendix A is revised to read as follows.

APPENDIX A TO PART 11—FEE SCHEDULE FOR FY 2010

State	County	(Fee/acre/YR)
Alabama	Autauga	\$62.78
Alabama	Baldwin	94.17
Alabama	Barbour	31.39
Alabama	Bibb	47.08
Alabama	Blount	94.17
Alabama	Bullock	47.08
Alabama	Butler	47.08
Alabama	Calhoun	94.17
Alabama	Chambers	31.39
Alabama	Cherokee	47.08
Alabama	Chilton	47.08
Alabama	Choctaw	47.08
Alabama	Clarke	47.08
Alabama	Clay	47.08